
From: VTA Board Secretary 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 2:22 PM 
To: VTA Board Secretary 
Subject: VTA Information: Updated Sept. 18, 2020 Board of Directors' Workshop agenda packet 
 
Board of Directors: 
 
The Updated Sept. 18, 2020, Board of Director’s Workshop agenda packet has been posted on 
our agenda portal that includes the following: 
 

• Agenda Item #3.1.d.   2021 Transit Service Plan (ppt) 
 

• Agenda Item #3.2.a.   VTA Block Design Development Framework Update (ppt) 
 

Thank you. 
 
 
Office of the Board Secretary 
Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority 
3331 North First Street, Building B 
San Jose, CA 95134-1927 
Phone 408-321-5680 
 

 
 

http://santaclaravta.iqm2.com/Citizens/Detail_Meeting.aspx?ID=3139


From: VTA Board Secretary 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2020 4:46 PM 
To: VTA Board of Directors 
Subject: From VTA: Correspondence re: Healthy Transit Plan follow up letter to R. Marcantonio 
 
VTA Board of Directors:  
 
For your information only.  
 
Attached is correspondence from Nuria I. Fernandez, VTA’s General Manager/CEO, 
responding to Mr. Richard Marcantonio’s letter dated 09/04/20 - VTA Board Resolution 
to Endorse & Implement MTC’s “Healthy Transit Plan”.  Please note the initial letter was 
emailed to you previously.   
 
Thank you.  
 
 
Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority 
3331 North First Street, Building C 
San Jose, CA 95134-1927 
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September 17, 2020 

By Email: Mr. Richard Marcantonio: rmarcantonio@publicadvocates.org 

Dear Mr. Marcantonio: 

Thank you for the follow up letter and observations; they are appreciated. 

As I mentioned in my previous response, VTA's IO-Point Plan predates the "Riding Together: 
Bay Area Healthy Transit Plan" and is what we have implemented in Santa Clara County. VTA 
is guided by the directives of the Santa Clara County Public Health Department which have 
historically been the stricter of the nine Bay Area counties; therefore, our actions will be directed 
by these local mandates. 

On-going efforts to execute VTA's 10-Point Plan are sufficient in meeting the Bay Area Healthy 
Transit Plan recommendations with the exception of the Metrics Dashboard ( coming soon'') in 
which VTA, and the other Bay Area transit operators, will be collecting and reporting requested 
data monthly. VTA's COVID-19 Information Center at www.vta.org has been updated to reflect 
this commitment. 

Lastly, the June 2 presentation sent to you was meant to provide a snapshot of the efforts we 
were undertaking to develop our IO-Point Plan. As you point out correctly, we are no longer 
restricting front door boarding and have updated our website to reflect that. We have also 
indicated that we are in the process of installing hand sanitizer and mask dispensers on our transit 
vehicles. 

Thank you again for your comments and commitment in keeping transit workers and customers 
safe and in good health! 

Sincerely, 

~ct;, 
Nuria I. FemanH 
General Manager/CEO 

3331 North First Street 
San Jose, CA 95134-1927 

Administration 408-321-5555 
Customer Service 408-321-2300 Solutions that move you 

http://healthytransitplan.com/


From: VTA Board Secretary  
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2020 5:12 PM 
To: VTA Board of Directors  
Subject: VTA Information: 2nd Update - Sept. 18, 2020 Board of Directors' Workshop agenda packet 
 
Board of Directors: 
 
The updated Sept. 18, 2020 Board of Directors’ Workshop agenda packet is now posted on our 
agenda portal that includes the following: 
 
Item 3.1.          Public Comment from Mr. Alex Shoor 
 
Item 3.2.          Public Comment from Mr. Roland Lebrun 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
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
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2020 2:42 PM 
To: VTA Board of Directors  
Subject: VTA Information: 3rd Update: Sept. 18, 2020 Board of Directors' Workshop agenda packet 
 
Board of Directors: 
 
You may access the Updated Sept. 16, 2020 Board of Directors’ Workshop agenda packet 
on the agenda portal that includes the following: 
 
            Item #2           Public Comment from Mr. Beekman 
 
            Item #3.1.       Public Comments from Charlotte Quinn and Robin Roemer 
 
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
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2020 5:11 PM 
To: VTA Board Secretary 
Cc: Golem, Ron 
Subject: From VTA: Response to Republic Urban Properties re: Developer Selection for Exclusive 
Negotiations for Curtner Station TOD 
 
VTA Board of Directors: 
 
Attached is VTA staff’s response to Republic Urban Properties (ltr. attached) re: Developer 
Selection for Exclusive Negotiations for Curtner Station Transit-Oriented Development.   
 
If you have any questions, please reply to this email or contact Ron Golem, Director of Real 
Estate & Transit Oriented Development at 408-321-5791 or ron.golem@vta.org.  
 
Thank you. 
 
 
VTA Office of the Board Secretary 
Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority 
3331 North First Street, Building B-1 
San Jose, CA 95134-1927 
Phone: 408-321-5680 

 

mailto:ron.golem@vta.org


RUP- 84 West Santa Clara ∙ #600 ∙ San Jose, California 95113 ∙ Phone (408) 292-1601 ∙ 

September 2, 2020 

VTA President Chavez and VTA Board of Directors 
Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority 
333 North First Street, Building B-1 
San Jose, CA 95134 

Re:  September 3, 2020 Meeting Item 7.4 

Dear VTA President Chavez and Honorable VTA Board Members, 

Republic Urban Properties (“Republic”) urges you to reject the staff recommendation and select our 
development program for the following reasons: 

1. BDG/CBNA’s proposal is inconsistent with the Request for Proposal (“RFP”) and, if
selected, would pose serious issues of fairness and transparency;

2. The evaluation of BDG/CBNA’s proposal fails to take into account risk and, as such,
overvalues the expected economic benefits to VTA; and,

3. A mixed-use, mixed-income development that favors housing production best matches with
what was solicited in the RFP and with what the community wants and needs.

First, the recommended development program is inconsistent with the RFP. 

VTA’s stated vision is to create a “mixed-use and mixed-income equitable Transit-Oriented 
Development.”  (RFP at Appendix 7, p. 1.)  To this end, its Curtner RFP called for development 
programs to create a “vibrant, high-quality mixed-use development” (RFP at p. 5 [emphasis added]) 
that would be evaluated in part based on “VTA “desire[] a mix of both market rate and affordable 
housing at the Project” (RFP at p. 22.)1  Accordingly, proposals were directed to comply with the City 
of San Jose’s “Signature Review Urban Plan Village context” (RFP at p. 6) and VTA specifically 
informed applicants that “the City [has] directed that the Project will require a minimum of 305 
housing units, and approximately 17,000 (0.07 FAR) commercial sq. ft.” (RFP at p.10 [emphasis 
added].) 

1 Residential density for a Signature Project should be at 55 dwelling units/acre or more.  See https://www.sanjoseca.gov/your-
government/departments-offices/planning-building-code-enforcement/planning-division/citywide-planning/urban-
villages/signature-projects. 
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Consistent with these directives, the RFP directed applicants to make the largest parcel in the 
development, Parcel A, “available for mixed-use transit-oriented development.” (RFP at p. 4.)  Not 
surprisingly, all three of VTA’s concepts focused on housing with neighborhood-serving commercial 
as an important – but distinctly secondary aspect of the development.   
 
BDG/CBNA has proposed to build a 200,000 SF medical office building with no market rate housing 
and affordable housing that will not be provided until the second phase of development. The proposed 
residential density of 11.8 DUs/Ac (or 31.8 DUs/Ac if the assisted living units are included) is also 
inconsistent with the Signature Project policies.   
 
While BDG/CBNA’s proposal complies with the existing NCC General Plan, this designation is 
simply a placeholder for future Urban Village design.  It does not serve VTA’s TOD goals to eliminate 
a large, ideal Signature Project site where housing could be located and to put, in its place, a large 
office development where there is limited commercial interest, great concern over the potential traffic 
impacts from a high-density commercial development, and much neighborhood need for residential 
and neighborhood-serving uses.  
 
More basically, the selection of a proposal that does not meet the thrust of the RFP creates a serious 
question of transparency and fairness.  If the submissions were supposed to be centered on 
commercial/employment uses and did not need to meet the minimum number of housing units for a 
Signature Project, provide any market rate housing or follow any of VTA’s proposed concepts, the 
RFP should have so stated. 

Second, the economic analysis of BDG/CBNA’s proposal does not appropriately discount it for 
risk, and, as such, it overvalues the expected economic benefits to VTA.  

On paper, BDG/CBNA’s projected returns may be appealing but, as a public steward, VTA cannot 
afford to speculate.  The recommended development program is risky, unsupported by historical 
demand, and should not be VTA’s top choice for this site.    

While we all wish that San Jose was a place that could easily attract large-scale employers to lease 
200,000 SF office buildings, the reality is that there is no proven demand for office developments of 
this scale outside of Downtown.  If private investors are not willing to take the risk, it bears asking why 
a public agency would voluntarily undertake what the private sector will not?2   

The fact that BDG/CBNA’s proposal is focused on medical office only adds to the risk.  No office or 
medical lease of 20,000 SF or greater has been signed in the area between SR-17 and 101 South of I-
280 in nearly 3 years.  While Kaiser was rumored to be looking for a large-scale office building several 
years ago, their search was limited to the Evergreen/Eastside areas of San Jose – not Central San Jose.   

 
2 There is no other development in San Jose for office buildings that approach this magnitude outside of Downtown 
other than a 345,000 SF office project at 3610 Olsen Drive (Santana West) that has been under construction since 
2019 and remains 100% unleased.  Tellingly, the next largest new office developments are a 16,700 SF building at 
1799 Hamilton Ave and 15,900 SF building at 1133 Minnesota Avenue. 
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The high cost of construction for a net-zero water, net-zero medical office building further compounds 
the danger of insufficient lease-up to return the expected benefits to VTA.  These costs, which 
Republic estimates to be between $1,000 and $1,200/SF, would require rents in excess of $4/SF in 
order to be feasible.  

Any expectation that an office building in the Curtner neighborhood could command these rents when 
there are other commercial options in more attractive areas3 coming available each day as COVID 
decimates office occupancy rates is speculative, at best. 

Third, a mixed-use, mixed-income development that favors housing production best meets the 
expectations set in the RFP and fulfills the community’s needs. 

 
Republic has proposed a flexible development program that will build at least 305 family-oriented 
market-rate and affordable units4 as well as 17,000 SF of neighborhood-serving commercial, including 
a daycare for which a Letter of Intent to Lease has already been secured. Republic has also committed 
to ground lease payments of $110,000 per year that can be used for VTA station improvements, such as 
Public Art, Access Improvements, Safety and Lighting Improvements, Transit Benefits.   
 
The surface parking lot in Republic’s development program provides VTA with the flexibility for a 
second phase of development which could add even more housing units (up to 500+ units total) and 
more leasable commercial space.5  This second phase offers VTA approximately 30% more net 
revenue than what VTA has calculated for Republic’s development proposal.6   
 
If VTA chooses Republic’s proposal and opts for a second phase of development as it has with 
BDG/CBNA, Republic’s proposal also yields more affordable units.  Under Republic’s proposal, at 

 
3 Even if one were to The Downtown San Jose Area, which has better access to Caltrain and other amenities, is 
scheduled to deliver over 4.5 million SF of Class A office space between 2022 and 2023.  These projects will 
compete with the Curtner TOD and reduce demand. 
 
4 Republic chose Kin Families as its operator because of its expertise in designing and managing urban-living 
environments and to give a wider variety of rental housing options for families and multi-generational living.  
Republic’s proposal features larger floor plans, babyproof apartment finishes, family-friendly amenities (playgrounds, 
libraries, sand boxes, etc.), stroller parking and additional storage opportunities, daycare and afterschool services, and 
a regular family event programming. This type of unit and amenity programming is directly correlated with VTA’s 
eTOD goals of “[m]eet[ing] local and regional affordable and workforce housing goals, with the evaluation of 
opportunities for more units…and a greater share of family-sized units..” (RFP, Appendix 7 at p. 4.) 
 
5 The opportunity to redevelop the remaining parking lot are with additional housing units (both market-rate and 
affordable) and ground floor commercial uses was communicated to VTA staff in the interview and in a written 
follow-up communication but it does not appear to have been included in the staff summary or in the economic 
analysis of the project.  
 
6 Republic Urban and Charities Housing will also work with VTA to provide an up-front capitalized ground lease 
payment to the extent that such monetary contribution toward land will not render the affordable housing project 
financially infeasible. Currently, for just Phase 1, this is estimated at $27,500 per BMR unit or $1,677,500 total. 
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least 20% of the units provided will be reserved for lower-income households.  A total of 61 affordable 
units will be provided in the first phase and the second phase would bring this up to approximately 100 
units. These units are not only desperately needed by the community, they are also needed by the City 
of San Jose, which is falling woefully short of allocating enough feasible, vacant or developable land to 
meet its RHNA allocation and certify its Housing Element by December of 2022.   
 
In short, Republic’s development proposal is strongly grounded in a proven concept with historically-
verifiable metrics; both Republic and Charities Housing have a strong local presence and a good 
working relationship with labor; and Republic has successfully navigated projects of this scale and 
scope, including the December 2019 closing of the $488 million Gateway at BART Millbrae Station 
project located in the City of Millbrae.   
 
Our proposal is not only the safest option with the best developer sponsorship, it is also the one that is 
most likely to lead to a successful, fully-leased up project that will catalyze ridership and provide VTA 
with strong, reliable long-term lease payments. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 

 
 
Michael R. Van Every 
President/CEO 
 
CC:  Dev Davis, District 6 San Jose Councilmember  
  Mark Mikl, Charities Housing  
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